
 
 
 
Aide mémoire 

Te Pūkotahitanga – implementation of options 1 and 2 

Date: 3 December 2024 TPA ref: 2024/117193 

Security level: In confidence Action sought: Direction  

To: Hon Karen Chhour, Minister for the Prevention of Family and Sexual Violence 

From: Allanah Andrews, Manager System Policy 

Attachments: 2024-09-12 Briefing on the scope and purpose of Te Pūkotahitanga 
(114723) 

Purpose 

1. This aide mémoire responds to your request for advice about how to implement 
options from our briefing dated 12 September 2024 (114723).  

2. In preparation for this aide mémoire, we have also sought advice from the Public 
Service Commission (PSC) and Treasury.  

Background 

3. On 12 September 2024, we briefed you on options for expanding the scope and 
purpose of Te Pūkotahitanga – your tangata whenua Ministerial advisory group 
(Te Pūkotahitanga). 

4. We presented two main options for you to consider: 

a. Option 1: keep the group’s tangata whenua focus but change the group’s 
structure (e.g. reduce its size, review the terms of reference) 

b. Option 2: dissolve the group and create a new general advisory group. 

5. We have now consulted with PSC and Treasury, and both agree these options 
are the main ones for you to consider. Treasury has also given advice about how 
to implement these options.  

6. We also suggest some variations within Option 1 (keep current focus but change 
the group’s structure) that may interest you.  

Current funding arrangements for Te Pūkotahitanga  

7. Te Pūkotahitanga funding ($1.950 million per year) comes from a named 
category within the initiative called “Building partnerships and collaboration to 
transform the system: Māori-Crown relationships”. The Chief Executive of 
Te Puna Aonui is the delegated fund holder. 



IN CONFIDENCE  2 

8. As advised in September, initiative funding must be used for the purpose stated 
in the original budget bid (in this case to effect the Māori-Crown relationship). 
This has been confirmed by Treasury. 

Consultation with PSC: agreed with the options presented 

9. PSC reviewed the full briefing and had no concerns with the options presented. 
It didn’t identify any new options.  

Consultation with Treasury: advised us to seek Cabinet approval for any changes 

10. We also met with Treasury to review the options in our briefing and talk about 
how they could be implemented. Treasury didn’t identify any new options. 

11. Treasury confirmed our advice that funding must always be used for the purpose 
stated in the original Budget bid. It is not possible, without Cabinet approval, to 
turn Te Pūkotahitanga into a general advisory group using its current funding.  

12. Treasury explained that any changes to the group (e.g. from a Māori-focused 
advisory group to a general advisory group) would constitute a ‘significant policy 
change’, which requires agreement from Cabinet. This is set out in sections 5.11 
and 5.12 of the Cabinet Manual 20231. 

13. It is possible to make minor changes that do not change the scope or purpose of 
Te Pūkotahitanga. However, the Cabinet manual does not clearly define what 
constitutes a ‘significant’ change. Treasury recommends you seek Cabinet 
approval for any variations within Option 1 (keep current focus but change the 
group’s structure). 

14. Treasury said there are two ways to proceed if you want Option 2 (dissolve the 
group and create a new one). 

a. The first way is you can bring a paper to Cabinet that proposes a new use 
for the $1.95 million currently allocated for Te Pūkotahitanga. This paper 
would need to explain what is being proposed and why, any risks and 
mitigations, and why funding should be repurposed instead of returned to 
the Crown. There is always a possibility that Cabinet agrees to dissolve the 
group but doesn’t agree to repurpose the funding towards a new group. 
Despite this risk, we recommended this over the alternative in paragraph 
14b below.  

i. In the interests of completeness, Treasury also notes another pathway 
to consider: repurposing the funding for something else that aligns with 
the original intent of the appropriation. This would be appropriate if you 
wanted to dissolve Te Pūkotahitanga but do something else to improve 
Māori-Crown relations.  

 

1 https://www.dpmc.govt.nz/sites/default/files/2023-06/cabinet-manual-2023-v2.pdf  










